UNIVERSITY *of* PENNSYLVANIA



The University Archives and Records Center

A Guide to the Henry Howard Houston Estate Papers 1698-1989 (bulk 1830-1953)

26.0 Cubic feet

UPT 50 H843

Prepared by J.M. Duffin 1989

The University Archives and Records Center 3401 Market Street, Suite 210 Philadelphia, PA 19104-3358 215.898.7024 Fax: 215.573.2036 www.archives.upenn.edu Mark Frazier Lloyd, Director

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROVENANCE	1
ARRANGEMENT	1
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTE	1
SCOPE AND CONTENT	4
CONTROLLED ACCESS HEADINGS	7
INVENTORY	9
I. GENERAL REAL ESTATE FILES, 1834-1964	9
II. TITLE PAPERS RELATING TO CODED PROPERTIES, 1698-1953	3
III. RECORDS RELATING TO UNCODED PROPERTIES, 1867-196140)
IV. MAPS AND ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS, 1882-1967	2
V. REAL EST. HOLDINGS OF SALLIE SHERRERD (BONNELL) HOUSTON,	
<u>1902-1942</u>	8
VI. REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS OF SAMUEL FREDERIC HOUSTON, 1834-1952 48	,
VII. REFERENCE AND RESEARCH MATERIALS	1

Guide to the Henry Howard Houston Estate Papers 1698-1989 (bulk 1830-1953)

UPT 50 H843

26.0 Cubic feet

Prepared by J.M. Duffin 1989

Access is granted in accordance with the <u>Protocols for the University Archives and Records</u> <u>Center</u>.

PROVENANCE

Donated by Eleanor Houston Smith in June 1984 (accession 1987:33).

ARRANGEMENT

Organized in six series: I. General Real Estate Files, 1834-1964; II. Title Papers Relating to Coded Properties, 1768-1953; III. Records Relating to Uncoded Properties, 1867-1961; IV. Maps and Architectural Drawings, 1882-1967; V. Real Estate Holdings of Sallie Sherrerd Houston, 1902-1942; VI. Real Estate Holdings of Samuel Frederick Houston, 1834-1952; VII. Reference and Research, 1971-1989. All series are arranged alphabetically.

BIOGRAPHICAL NOTE

Henry Howard Houston was born in 1820 in Wrightsville, Pennsylvania, son of Samuel Nelson Houston and Susan Strickler. He left school at fourteen began his working life in the mercantile industry. In 1840 he was employed at an iron forge owned by James Buchanan (later U.S. President), the Lucinda Furnace in Clarion County, Pennsylvania. Having traveled for a few years, Houston learned to appreciate the value in the transportation industries; he began working for a canal and railway transportation company in 1847 in Philadelphia. By 1850 he had joined with the Pennsylvania Railroad as an agent in their freight department. He quickly rose in the ranks to become general freight agent for the entire railroad in 1852. Houston worked hard to expand and improve the operations of the railroad and succeeded in bringing it large profits during the massive movement of people and materials during the Civil War when the vice-president of the railroad, Thomas A. Scott, became Assistant Secretary of War. During these same years, his own fortune ascended to those of the very prosperous.

Houston left the Pennsylvania Railroad in 1867 to start a number of transportation companies. Almost all of these companies, however, had direct, and often favorable, business connections the Pennsylvania Railroad. Among the most notable companies were the Union Freight Line (later absorbed by the Empire Transportation Company) and the International Navigation Company, which created the Red Star Line. In addition to these companies, Houston invested in large number of railroads and related industries, such as iron and steel works, during this period. His close association with the Pennsylvania Railroad eventually earned him a position on its board of directors in 1881, a post which he held until his death. Houston's financial interests were not limited to railroads. He also invested in California and Nevada gold mines and, more significantly for his estate and heirs, the fledging petroleum industry.

Houston lived most of his adult life on Tulpehocken Street in the Germantown section of Philadelphia. In 1886, at the age of 66, he built a mansion "Drum Moir" in the adjacent Philadelphia community of Chestnut Hill. His interests in this area of the city were turned into an investment opportunity when the Pennsylvania Railroad decided to build a commuter line from center city Philadelphia to Chestnut Hill in the early 1880s. The subsidiary corporation - the Philadelphia, Germantown and Chestnut Hill Railroad - which formed to complete this work was headed by Houston. For some years prior to this, he had been purchasing land in the western parts of Chestnut Hill and Mount Airy and some small tracts in Germantown. By the time the Chestnut Hill railroad was completed and operational, Houston was the largest single landowner in this section of the city. He immediately began to develop his holdings by opening streets, building a resort hotel (now the campus of Chestnut Hill Academy), a country club, an Episcopal church, and several dozen rental houses. Houston's real estate investment and development plans were not limited to these communities. He also acquired large holdings in the upper section of Roxborough and adjacent Springfield and Whitemarsh Townships in Montgomery County. These areas were going to be located at the end of another branch of the Pennsylvania Railroad which was never built.

Henry Howard Houston stated in his will that he gave largely from his "income during [his] life to educational, religious, and charitable institutions and to private objects of charity" and practiced a method of philanthropy in which he gave at least one-tenth of his income to charity. In addition to donating funds, Houston was directly involved in a number of charitable and educational institutions. He served on the board of the directors of the Pennsylvania School for Deaf and was probably instrumental influencing the school's relocation from center of Philadelphia to suburban Mount Airy in the early 1890s. Houston was also an active member of the Protestant Episcopal Church, serving on the vestry and as rector's warden at two churches in Germantown, one of which he donated to the Diocese of Pennsylvania, being a lay delegate for the diocesan conventions, and supporting the Diocese of Maine, where he had a vacation home. His most notable service, however, was that on the board of trustees of the University of Pennsylvania. He was elected to the board in 1885 and held this position until his death. Both of his sons, Henry Howard, Jr., and Samuel Frederic, attended the University. Responding to an appeal from University Provost Charles Custis Harrsion, Houston decided to fund the construction a student union on the University campus. The building was dedicated to his son Henry, who died shortly after graduation in 1879. Houston Hall became America's first college student union. The family continued to support this building

Henry Howard Houston died in June 1895 and was survived by his wife Salle Sherrerd (Bonnell), and three children, Sallie Bonnell Houston Henry, Samuel Frederic Houston, and Gertrude Houston Woodward.

After Houston's death, the management of his real estate empire was turned over to the executors of his will. His son, Samuel Frederic Houston, and friend, Edgar Dudley Faries, were the main agents. They continued to rent houses in Chestnut Hill and Germantown into the 1930s and 1940s. Between 1895 and about 1925, the estate also sold off the choicest lots in Chestnut Hill to wealthy Philadelphians, who built new homes on them. These sales helped to create and maintain the status of Chestnut Hill as a leading neighborhood for the Philadelphia elite at the beginning of the twentieth century.

In addition to the Chestnut Hill activities, Samuel Frederic Houston was very interesting in developing the estate's holdings in Philadelphia's upper Roxborough and adjacent Montgomery County. The estate actively worked to acquire land in upper Roxborough and Springfield Township to fill out its existing holdings. Samuel's original plans were to make this area an extension of the Chestnut Hill by building a bridge over the Wissahickon gorge, which divided the two communities, and by constructing a road which would connect Roxborough with the Main Line and Chestnut Hill. This idea first appeared in public 1910. In the 1920s the estate hired Philadelphia architect and University of Pennsylvania professor, Paul Philippe Cret, to prepare a traffic study on

the best route for the new road. At the same time, Samuel tried unsuccessfully to interest the City to hold its Sesquicentennial fair on the estate's Roxborough land. In 1927, however, he did succeed in persuading the Episcopal Diocese of Pennsylvania to accept a tract of land for the site of new grand cathedral. In spite of Samuel's donation of the mortuary chapel, the Diocese was unable to raise enough funds and interest in the building to complete more than the choir and chapel.

When Samuel was unsuccessful in getting the necessary support of both the Philadelphia and Montgomery County officials for a development plan based upon on a cross-county road, he scaled back the design to include only a bridge between Chestnut Hill and Roxborough. He hired Robert Rodes McGoodwin in the 1930s to design several modest middle class houses which were to set the tone of the development in Roxborough. Just after World War II, Houston hired the firm of Saarinen, Saarinen, and Associates to put together a full scale development plan for the area. Saarinen's city planners produced a brochure detailing recommended mixed use development and a bridge over the Wissahickon. Houston tried to interest a number of institutions to locate at this site, the most notable being the United Nations, Temple University, and the Veteran's Administration Hospital. These plans became too ambitious for Samuel to undertake as he reached his 80s and in the end he chose to follow a very modest design for typical post World War II ranch-style housing development surrounding a shopping center. This new community, which was largely the design work of Walter K. Durham, is known today as Andorra.

The death of Samuel Frederic Houston in 1952 ended the active real estate development of the Henry Howard Houston estate. The estate continued its legal existence until the death in 1961 of Henry Howard's last surviving child, Gertrude Houston Woodward. Upon her death the assets of the estate were divided among the surviving heirs. Most of the unsold land fell to Samuel Frederic's daughter, Eleanor Houston Smith, who took an active role in preserving much of the land for open space.

SCOPE AND CONTENT

The Henry Howard Houston Estate Papers document the creation and development of a large real estate investment in late nineteenth and early twentieth century Philadelphia and Montgomery Counties. The collection also provides extension information on land ownership in this area from the late eighteenth to mid nineteenth century through the original deeds, which form the title papers series of the collection.

The General Real Estate Files series contains correspondence and working files relating to real estate management and development for the Henry Howard Houston Estate primarily from 1920 to 1950. The series includes correspondence, proposals and a few architects' plans for the development of the Estate's land holdings in the Germantown, Chestnut Hill and Roxborough sections of Philadelphia County and in Springfield and Whitemarsh townships of adjoining Montgomery County. The Eliel and Eero Saarinen correspondence is the most extensive. The series also includes financial and personnel records, title papers to properties purchased by the Estate's Joint Account (arranged by grantor), property appraisals, an analysis of property improvements and tax lists. Most notable among these records are a comprehensive ledger of rents and repairs (1884-1901); a printed copy of the will of H.H. Houston (1895); a printed copy of the executor's accounting of the estate for the period 1895-1901; comprehensive appraisals of the Estate's real estate holdings as of 1913 and 1940 and an "improvement analysis" for the period 1913-1940; and, a circa 1950 promotional brochure by Saarinen, Saarinen and Associates of the Estate's proposed development plans.

The Coded Property series is the heart of the Houston Estate Papers. Houston's extensive accumulation of Philadelphia real estate is documented purchase by purchase; taken as a group, these property files track Houston's decision making over a thirty year period. Many files contain the original parchment deeds to a given property, in many cases extending back as far as the eighteenth century; this should be of considerable interest to local historians. The bulk of the materials, however, reflect Houston's own activity and date from 1865 through 1895.

Deeds, mortgages, correspondence, tax receipts, title searches, briefs of title, maps and property plans; registers of grantors and properties can be found in this series. Summary accounts of all properties are found in the two volume "Deed Record Book." Individual files are arranged by an alphanumeric coding system keyed to an index map prepared by the Estate in 1906. The index map includes all Mount Airy, Chestnut Hill and Roxborough properties owned by the estate in 1906. Copies of the index map, reduced and mounted on ten separate boards, are contained in this series. The index map does not include properties sold before 1906, acquired after 1906 and/or located in areas other than the three described above. A register, along with a grantor index, listing all the coded properties is located at the beginning of the series. The coded property series also includes approximately 120 individual property plans found in their respective property folders.

The Records Relating to Uncoded Properties series contains documentation relating to properties which do not fall within the coding system established by the managers of Henry Howard Houston's real estate holdings. These records are arranged in three subseries: properties west of the Wissahickon Creek, most of which are located in the Andorra section of upper Roxborough; properties east of the Wissahickon, including Germantown, Mt. Airy and Chestnut Hill; and properties outside of Philadelphia. The documents include deeds and other title papers, tax bills and assessments for municipal improvements, a brief renter index for the Andorra development and a few property development plans.

The Maps and Architectural Drawings series consists of maps, site surveys, plans and architectural drawings arranged according to a geographic-numeric index map used by the estate for Philadelphia county properties. The index designates fifteen geographic areas in Philadelphia and Montgomery counties and one miscellaneous category. All maps and drawings in the Houston Estate Papers collection correspond to a location in this index. The detailed map inventory can be found here: https://archives.upenn.edu/digitized-resources/docs-pubs/houston-maps-inventory.

The maps, architectural drawings and related textual materials generally reflect twentieth century development of Houston properties in the Germantown, Mount Airy, Chestnut Hill and Roxborough sections of Philadelphia. This series complements and often is directly related the documentation found in the first three series.

The Real Estate Holdings of Sallie Sherrerd (Bonnell) Houston series and the Real Estate Holdings of Samuel Frederic Houston series document the purchase, management, and development of properties which were acquired to fill out the estate's holdings in the Roxborough section of Philadelphia County and across the county line into Springfield and Whitemarsh townships of Montgomery County. The contents are primarily title papers and real estate tax and assessment receipts. Tax and assessment receipts are arranged chronologically and the title papers are arranged by last name of grantor.

The Research Materials series contains research and reports relating to the Houston estate and family. Its contents are papers and copies of published and manuscript works created by those who have studied the Houston family and the Estate of Henry Howard Houston at various times in the mid and late twentieth century. It includes the notes of those who had access to the collection and sought to organize it prior to its gift to the University of Pennsylvania Archives. In addition to this is a copy of the inventory of the Henry Howard Houston Estate collection at the Pennsylvania State Archives. Copies of research on the life of Henry Howard Houston and on the extended Houston family and on the Houston family development of Chestnut Hill can be found here. These materials are assembled here for the convenience of the user of the collection.

Researchers should note that most of the financial and investment records of the estate from around 1910 to the 1950s are found in the Henry Howard Houston Estate Papers, Manuscript Group 154 at the Pennsylvania State Archives. Houston's personal papers are located at the American

Philosophical Society and a small collection of architectural drawings at the Architectural Archives of the University of Pennsylvania.

CONTROLLED ACCESS HEADINGS

Corporate Name(s)

- Olmsted Brothers.
- University of Pennsylvania. -- General subdivision--Benefactors.;

Geographic Name(s)

- Andorra (Philadelphia, Pa.)
- Chestnut Hill (Philadelphia, Pa.)
- Montgomery County (Pa.)
- Mount Airy (Philadelphia, Pa.)
- Roxborough (Philadelphia, Pa.)
- Whitemarsh (Pa. : Township)

Personal Name(s)

- Durham, Walter K., (Walter Kremer), 1896-1978
- Houston, Sallie Sherrerd, 1849-1912
- Houston, Samuel Frederick, 1866-1952
- McGoodwin, Robert Rodes, 1886-1967
- Saarinen, Eero, 1910-1961
- Saarinen, Eliel, 1873-1950

Subject(s)

- Abstracts of title--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.
- Land companies--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.
- Real estate development--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.
- Real estate investment--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.

• Real property--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.

Henry Howard Houston Estate Papers 1698-1989 (bulk 1830-1953)

UPT 50 H843

Access is granted in accordance with the <u>Protocols for the University Archives and Records Center</u>.

INVENTORY

I. GENERAL REAL ESTATE FILES, 1834-1964	Box	Folder
A. Correspondence, Jacob Orie Clark, 1922-1937		
(1)	1	1
(2)	1	2
(3)	1	3
(4)	1	4
B. Development Studies, 1921-1954		
1. [Wroe] Alderson and [Robert E.] Sessions 1948-1950	1	5
2. Bridge, Cathedral Road (Roxborough)		
(1) 1953	1	6
(2) 1954	1	7
(3) 1959	1	8
(4) 1959	1	9
(5) 1911 1947-1953	1	10
(6) 1943 1955-1959	1	11
(7) 1955-1959	1	12

(8) 1952-1953	1	13
(9) 1955-1956	1	14
(10) 1946-1947	1	15
(11) 1953	1	16
(12) 1946-1953	1	17
(13) 1953	1	18
3. Promotional Brochure by Saarinen, Saarinen and Assoc. c. 1950	OS 2	1
4. Jacob Orie Clark		
(1), Property legal descriptions	1	20
(2), Montgomery County property legal descriptions	1	21
(3), Untitled property legal descriptions	1	22
(4), Road courses and petitions	1	23
(5), Philadelphia property legal descriptions	1	24
5. Paul Philippe Cret 1921-1927	1	25
6. [Eliel] Saarinen, [Eero] Saarinen and Association		
Invoices 1947-1948	1	26
Invoices 1946	1	27
Articles on Saarinen 1948-1956	1	28
Bridge designs 1946-1947	1	29
Correspondence 1947-1954	1	30
Correspondence 1947	1	31
Correspondence July 1946-December 1946	1	32
Correspondence November 1945-July 1946	1	33
Bridge designs 1946	1	34

"Basis of design for feasible future highways" 1946	1	35
"Basis of design for feasible future highways" 1946	1	36
"Basis of design for feasible future highways" 1946	1	37
"Basis of design for feasible future highways" 1946	1	38
"Basis of design for feasible future highways" 1946	1	39
Monthly reports 1946-1947	1	40
C. Financial Records, 1884-1951		
1. Accounts		
189-	1	41
1895-1945	1	42
2. Ledger of Renters 1884-1901	2A	
3. Mortgages, 1913-1946		
Applications, 1913-1938		
(1)	1	44
(2)	1	45
(3)	1	46
(4)	1	47
(5)	1	48
Foreclosed, 1930-1946		
(1)	1	49
(2)	1	50
(3)	1	51
(4)	1	52
(5)	1	53

(6)	1	54
(7)	1	55
(8)	1	56
Powers of Attorney for Satisfaction, 1913-1943		
(1)	1	57
(2)	1	58
(3)	1	59
(4)	1	60
(5)	1	61
4. Personnel Records, 1945-1958		
(1)	1	62
(2)	1	63
(3)	1	64
(4)	1	65
(5)	1	66
5. Joint Account Title Papers, 1923-1955		
Map	2	1
Moore (Hildwine)	2	2
Townsend (Mitten)	2	3
Townsend (Goos)	2	4
Townsend (Malkus)	2	5
Townsend (Johnson)	2	6
Townsend (Henninger)	2	7
Townsend (Smick)	2	8

Townsend (Henninger)	2	9
Groskin (Crothers)	2	10
Carpenter	2	11
Wieser	2	12
Day	2	13
Kessler	2	14
Crothers	2	15
Platchek	2	16
Berry	2	17
Torr	2	18
Freimuller	2	19
Crothers	2	20
Summers	2	21
Hill (Sheriff Deed)	2	22
Hanes (Sheriff Deed)	2	23
Thornton	2	24
Dailey (Sheriff Deed)	2	25
Chaplin Memorial Home	2	26
Boone	2	27
Morris	2	28
Groskin	2	29
D. Miscellaneous, 1834-1964		
1. 1891 1895	2	30
2. 1897	2	31

3. Fairmount Park Land Descriptions, 1896		
(1)	2	32
(2)	2	33
4. Edgar Dudley Faries, Title Papers		
(1)	2	34
(2)	2	35
5. General Correspondence Index	2	36
6. McCallum Street Bridge 1982	2	37
7. Property Indices		
(1)	2	38
(2)	2	39
(3)	2	40
8. Real Estate Title Insurance and Trust Co.	2	41
9. Street Directory, 1906	2	42
10. Pennsylvania Supreme Court Decision, 1964	2	43
11. Title Papers: Unknown Transactions, 1885-1954		
(1), Germantown Ave., Chestnut Hill	2	44
(2), Millman St.	2	45
(3), 1227 N. Myrtlewood St.	2	46
(4), Chew and Lawrence Sts.	2	47
(5), 2156 Palethorp St.	2	48
(6), Mt. Ephraim, New Jersey	2	49
12. Will of Henry Howard Houston, 1895	2	50
13. Wissahickon Correspondence, Samuel F. Houston 1932-1936		

3. Fairmount Park Land Descriptions, 1896

E. Real Estate Holdings, 1913-1955		
1. Appraisals, 1913 and 1940		
a. 1940, Correspondence		
(1)	2	52
(2)	2	53
b. Massey, 1913 and 1940		
1913 Appraisal		
A-C	2	54
E-H	2	55
Н	2	56
М	2	57
M-R	2	58
S	2	59
S	2	60
S	2	61
S	2	62
S-W	2	63
W	2	64
W	2	65
Farm properties, B-G	2	66
Farm properties, M-T	2	67
Farm properties, T-W; Value at date of acquisition, A-C	2	68
Value at date of acquisition, C-F	2	69
Value at date of acquisition, F-M	2	70

Value at date of acquisition, M-W	2	71
Value at date of acquisition, W	2	72
S-W	2	73
W	2	74
W	2	75
Farm properties, B-G	2	76
Farm properties, G-S	2	77
Farm properties, T-W; Value at date of acquisition, A-C	2	78
Value at date of acquisition, C	2	79
Value at date of acquisition, C-D	2	80
Value at date of acquisition, F-M	2	81
Value at date of acquisition, M, A-C	2	82
Value at date of acquisition, C-H	2	83
Value at date of acquisition, H	2	84
Value at date of acquisition, H-M	2	85
Value at date of acquisition, M-N	2	86
Value at date of acquisition, R	2	87
Value at date of acquisition, R-S	2	88
Value at date of acquisition, S	2	89
Value at date of acquisition, S	2	90
Value at date of acquisition, S	2	91
Value at date of acquisition, S	2	92
1940 Appraisal (with photographs)		
A-C	2	93

С	2	94
E-G	2	95
G-H	2	96
Н	2	97
H-M	3	1
Μ	3	2
M-R	3	3
R	3	4
R-S	3	5
S	3	6
S	3	7
S-T	3	8
W	3	9
W	3	10
W	3	11
W; Farm properties, B-G	3	12
Farm properties, G-S	3	13
Farm properties, S-W	3	14
A-C	3	15
С	3	16
C-F	3	17
G-H	3	18
Н	3	19
H-M	3	20

Μ	3	21
Μ	3	22
N-R	3	23
R-S	3	24
S	3	25
S	3	26
S	3	27
S-W	3	28
W	3	29
W	3	30
W	3	31
Farm properties, B-G	3	32
Farm properties, G-S	3	33
Farm properties, S-W	3	34
c. Priestman, 1913, 1940, 1955		
1913 Appraisal		
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: A-C	3	35
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: C	3	36
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: C-F	3	37
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: F-G	3	38
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: H	3	39
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: H-L	3	40
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M	3	41
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M	3	42

22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M-R	3	43
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: R-S	3	44
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S	3	45
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S	3	46
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S	3	47
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S-W	3	48
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W	3	49
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W	3	50
Farm properties: A-G	3	51
Farm properties: G-S	3	52
Farm properties: S-W; Other Philadelphia properties: C-M	3	53
Other Philadelphia properties: M-W	3	54
Other Philadelphia properties: W; Drexel Hill, Pa.	3	55
1940 Appraisal (with photographs)		
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: A-C	3	56
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: C-F	3	57
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: F-H	3	58
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: H	3	59
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: H-M	3	60
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M	3	61
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M	3	62
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: M-R	3	63
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: R-S	2	64
	3	04
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S	3	65

22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S-W36722nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W36822nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W36922nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W;370Farm properties, A-B70	
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W36922nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W;370	
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: W; 3 70	
Farm properties: B-M 3 71	
Farm properties: M-T372	
Farm properties: W: Other Philadelphia373properties: C-W	
Other Philadelphia properties: W; Drexel Hill, Pa. 3 74	
22nd, 21st, and 35th Wards, Philadelphia: S 3 75	
1955 Appraisal (with photographs)	
(1) 3 76	
(2) 3 77	
(3) 3 78	
(4) 3 79	
(5) 3 80	
(6) 3 81	
(7) 3 82	
(8) 3 83	
d. Emlen, 1955 (with photographs)	
(1) 3 84	
(2) 3 85	
(3) 3 86	

(4)	3	87
(5)	3	88
e. Barber, 1955	3	89
2. List of Properties, 1946		
S	3	90
S-W	3	91
W; Farm properties, B-G	3	92
Farm properties, G-P	3	93
Farm properites, P-T	3	94
Farm properties, T-W	3	95
Farm properties, W, Lancaster County	3	96
Vacant land, A-E	3	97
Vacant land, E-G	3	98
Vacant land, G	3	99
Vacant land, G-H	3	100
Vacant land, H-M	3	101
Vacant land, M	3	102
Vacant land, M	3	103
Vacant land, M-R	4	1
Vacant land, R-S	4	2
Vacant land, S	4	3
Vacant land, S-T	4	4
Vacant land, W-V	4	5
	4	6

3. Improvement Analysis, 1913-1940 (3 copies)	OS 2	1
Contains comprehensive property record with lists of maintenance, alterations general repairs and their costs	OS 0	
4. Sales and Improvements, 1906-1912		
Index to correspondence	4	8
A20: Paving Navahoe St. and Mermaid Lane 1908-1910	4	9
A34: Lot SE side of Hartwell Ave. opp. to Shawnee St. 1906	4	10
A35: Lot on Willow Grove Ave. adj. Dr. Woodward's residence 1909	4	11
A37: Lot on Morris and Rittenhouse Sts. 1908	4	12
A44: Lot on Moreland, St. Martins, Tetlow and Chandler Sts. 1910-1912	4	13
A45: Lot on Wayne Ave. and Tulpehocken St. 1906-1912	4	14
Misc. 1910-1911	4	15
5. Street Improvements, 1889-1899, 1930		
1888-1892	4	16
1893-1898	4	17
6. Tax Assessments, 1915-1922		
(1)	OS 2	3
(2)	OS 2	4
7. City of Philadelphia Taxes and Water Rents paid per property, per	annum, 1908-1	930
1908-1918	4	20
1909-1921	4	21
1921-1925	4	22
1925-1930	4	23
1927-1928	4	24

II. TITLE PAPERS RELATING TO CODED PROPERTIES, 1698-1953	Box	Folder
A. Indices		
1. Ledger: Index to Grantors in "Deed Record Book"	OS 1	1
2. Ledger: "Deed Record Book" (2 volumes)	OS 1	2
3. Index maps of coded properties	OS 1	3
B. Property Files		
A.2.	4	28
A.3.	4	29
A.4.	4	30
A.5.	4	31
A.6.	4	32
A.10.	4	33
A.11.	4	34
A.12.	4	35
A.13	4	36
A.14.	4	37
A.15	4	38
A.16.	4	39
A.17.	4	40
A.18.	4	41
A.19.	4	42
A.20. (1)	5	1
A.20. (2)	5	2

A.21. (1)	5	3
A.21. (2)	5	4
A.22. (1)	5	5
A.22. (2)	5	6
A.23.	5	7
A.24.	5	8
A.25.	5	9
A.26.	5	10
A.27.	5	11
A.28. (1)	5	12
A.28. (2)	5	13
A.29. (1)	5	14
A.29. (2)	5	15
A.30. (1)	5	16
A.30. (2)	5	17
A.32.	5	18
A.33.	5	19
A.34	5	20
A.35.	5	21
A.36.	5	22
B.1. (1)	5	23
B.1. (2)	5	24
B.2. (1)	5	25
B.2. (2)	5	26

B.3.	5	27
B.4.	5	28
B.5.	6	1
B.6.	6	2
B.7.	6	3
B.8.	6	4
B.9.	6	5
B.10. (1)	6	6
B.10. (2)	6	7
B.11. (1)	6	8
B.11. (2)	6	9
B.12. (1)	6	10
B.12. (2)	6	11
B.12. (3)	6	12
B.12. (4)	6	13
B.12. (5)	6	14
B.13. (1)	6	15
B.13. (2)	6	16
B.13. (3)	6	17
B.13. (4)	6	18
B.13. (5)	6	19
B.13. (6)	6	20
B.14.	6	21
B.15.	7	1

B.16. (1)	7	2
B.16. (2)	7	3
B.16. (3)	7	4
B.17. (1)	7	5
B.17. (2)	7	6
B.17. (3)	7	7
B.17. (4)	7	8
B.18. (1)	7	9
B.18. (2)	7	10
B.18. (3)	7	11
B.18. (4)	7	12
C.1.	8	1
C.2.	8	2
С.3	8	3
C.4.	8	4
C.5.	8	5
C.6.	8	6
C.7. (1)	8	7
C.7. (2)	8	8
C.8. (1)	8	9a
C.8. (2)	8	9b
C.8 (1)	8	10
C.8 (2)	8	11
C.8 (3)	8	12

C.8 (4)	8	13
C.8 (5)	8	14
C.8 (6)	8	15
C.8 (7)	8	16
C.9.1	8	17
C.9.2	8	18
C.10.	8	19
C.11.	8	20
C.12.	8	21
C.13.	8	22
C.14.	8	23
C.15.	9	1
C.17.	9	2
C.18.	9	3
C.19. (1)	9	4
C.19. (2)	9	5
C.19. (3)	9	6
C.20.	9	7
C.21.	9	8
C.22.	9	9
C.23. (1)	9	10
C.23. (2)	9	11
C.24.	9	12
C.25.	9	13

C.26.	9	14
C.27.	9	15
C.28.	9	16
C.29. (1)	9	17
C.29. (2)	9	18
C.30.	9	19
C.31.	9	20
D.1.	9	21
D.2.	9	22
D.3.	9	23
D.4.	9	24
D.5. (1)	10	1
D.5. (2)	10	2
D.5. (3)	10	3
D.5. (4)	10	4
D.5. (5)	10	5
D.5. (6)	10	6
D.6.	10	7
D.7.1, 2, and 3 (1)	10	8
D.7.1, 2, and 3 (2)	10	9
D.8.	10	10
D.9.1 and 2	10	11
D.10. (1)	10	12
D.10. (2)	10	13

D.10. (3)	10	14
D.11.	10	15
D.12. (1)	10	16
D.12. (2)	10	17
D.12. (3)	10	18
D.13. (1)	10	19
D.13. (2)	10	20
D.14. (1)	10	21
D.14. (2)	10	22
D.14. (3)	10	23
D.14. (4)	10	24
D.14. (5)	10	25
D.14. (6)	10	26
D.15. (1)	11	1
D.15. (2)	11	2
D.16. (1)	11	3
D.16. (2)	11	4
D.16. (3)	11	5
D.17. (1)	11	6
D.17. (2)	11	7
D.17. (3)	11	8
D.17. (4)	11	9
D.18.3	11	10
E.1.	11	11

E.2.	11	12
E.3.	11	13
E.4.	11	14
E.5.	11	15
E.6.	11	16
E.7.	11	17
E.8.	11	18
E.9.	11	19
E.10. (1)	11	20
E.10. (2)	11	21
E.11.	11	22
E.12. (1)	11	23
E.12. (2)	11	24
E.13.	11	25
E.14. (1)	11	26
E.14. (2)	11	27
E.15.	12	1
E.16. (1)	12	2
E.16. (2)	12	3
E.17.	12	4
E.18.	12	5
E.19.	12	6
E.20.	12	7
E.21.	12	8

E.22. (1)	12	9
E.22. (2)	12	10
E.23.	12	11
E.24. (1)	12	12
E.24. (2)	12	13
E.25.	12	14
E.26. (1)	12	15
E.26. (2)	12	16
E.27.	12	17
E.28. (1)	12	18
E.28. (2)	12	19
E.29.	12	20
F.1.	12	21
F.2.	12	22
F.3.	12	23
F.4. (1)	12	24
F.4. (2)	12	25
F.5.	12	26
F.6.	13	1
F.7.	13	2
F.8.1.	13	3
F.8.2.	13	4
F.9.1.	13	5
F.9.2. (1)	13	6

F.9.2. (2)	13	7
F.10.1.	13	8
F.10.2. (1)	13	9
F.10.2. (2)	13	10
F.11. (1)	13	11
F.11. (2)	13	12
F.12.	13	13
F.13. (1)	13	14
F.13. (2)	13	15
F.14.	13	16
F.15.	13	17
F.17.	13	18
F.18. (1)	13	19
F.18. (2)	13	20
F.19.	13	21
F.20. (1)	13	22
F.20. (2)	13	23
F.21.	13	24
F.22. (1)	13	25
F.22. (2)	13	26
G.1.	13	27
G.2.	13	28
G.3.	13	29
G.4	13	30

G.5.	14	1
G.6	14	2
G.7. (1)	14	3
G.7. (2)	14	4
G.7. (3)	14	5
G.8.	14	6
G.9.	14	7
G.11. (1)	14	8
G.11. (2)	14	9
G.12.	14	10
G.13. (1)	14	11
G.13. (2)	14	12
G.14.	14	13
G.15. (1)	14	14
G.15. (2)	14	15
G.16. (1)	14	16
G.16. (2)	14	17
G.16. (3)	14	18
G.17. (1)	14	19
G.17. (2)	14	20
G.18.	14	21
G.19.	14	22
G.20.	14	23
G.21. (1)	15	1

G.21. (2)	15	2
G.22.	15	3
G.23.	15	4
H.1. (1)	15	5
H.1. (2)	15	6
H.2. (1)	15	7
H.2. (2)	15	8
Н.З.	15	9
H.4.1 and 2 (1)	15	10
H.4.1 and 2 (2)	15	11
H.5. (1)	15	12
H.5. (2)	15	13
H.5. (3)	15	14
H.5. (4)	15	15
H.6. (1)	15	16
H.6. (2)	15	17
H.6. (3)	15	18
H.7. (1)	16	1
H.7. (2)	16	2
H.7. (3)	16	3
H.8. (1)	16	4
H.8. (2)	16	5
Н.9.	16	6
H.10. (1)	16	7

H.10. (2)	16	8
H.10. (3)	16	9
H.10. (4)	16	10
H.10. (5)	16	11
I.1. (1)	16	12
I.1. (2)	16	13
I.2.	16	14
I.3. (1)	16	15
I.3. (2)	16	16
I.5.	16	17
I.6. (1)	16	18
I.6. (2)	16	19
I.7.	16	20
J.1.	17	1
J.2. (1)	17	2
J.2. (2)	17	3
J.2. (3)	17	4
J.2. (4)	17	5
J.2. (5)	17	6
J.3.	17	7
J.4.	17	8
J.5.	17	9
J.6.	17	10
J.7. and J.8. (1)	17	11

J.7. and J.8. (2)	17	12
J.7. and J.8. (3)	17	13
J.7. and J.8. (4)	17	14
J.7. and J.8. (5)	17	15
K.1.	17	16
K.1 (2)	17	17
K.1 (2)	17	18
K.2.	17	19
K.3. (1)	17	20
K.3. (2)	17	21
K.4.	17	22
K.5. (1)	17	23
K.5. (2)	17	24
K.5. (3)	17	25
K.5. (4)	17	26
K.5. (5)	17	27
K.6. (1)	18	1
K.6. (2)	18	2
K.7.	18	3
K.8.	18	4
L.1.	18	5
L.2. (1)	18	6
L.2. (2)	18	7
L.2. (3)	18	8

L.2. (4)	18	9
L.3.	18	10
L.4.	18	11
L.5.	18	12
L.6.	18	13
M.1.	18	14
M.2.	18	15
M.3.	18	16
M.4.	18	17
M.5.	18	18
M.7.	18	19
M.8.	18	20
M.9. (1)	18	21
M.9. (2)	18	22
M.10. (1)	18	23
M.10. (2)	18	24
M.10. (3)	18	25
M.10. (4)	18	26
N.1.	18	27
N.2.	18	28
N.3.	18	29
N.4.	18	30
N.5.	18	31
N.6.	19	1

N.7.	19	2
N.8.	19	3
N.9.	19	4
N.10. (1)	19	5
N.10. (2)	19	6
N.11.	19	7
N.12. (1)	19	8
N.12. (2)	19	9
N.13.	19	10
N.14.	19	11
N.15.	19	12
N.16.	19	13
0.1.	19	14
O.2.	19	15
0.3.	19	16
O.4.	19	17
O.5.	19	18
O.6.	19	19
O.7.	19	20
0.9.	19	21
0.13. (1)	19	22
O.13. (2)	19	23
0.15. (1)	19	24
O.15. (2)	19	25

O.16	19	26
P.1.	19	27
P.2. (1)	19	28
P.2. (2)	19	29
P.3.	19	30
P.4.	19	31
P.5.	19	32
P.6.	19	33
P.7. (1)	20	1
P.7. (2)	20	2
P.7. (3)	20	3
P.8.	20	4
P.10.	20	5
P.11.	20	6
P.12.	20	7
P.13.	20	8
P.14.	20	9
P.15.	20	10
P.16.	20	11
P.17.	20	12
P.18.	20	13
P.19. (1)	20	14
P.19. (2)	20	15
Q.1. (1)	20	16

Q.3.2018Q.9.2019Q.10.2020Q.162021R.3.2022R.4.2023R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2031R.22. (1)2031R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	Q.1. (2)	20	17
Q.10.2020Q.162021R.3.2022R.4.2023R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	Q.3.	20	18
Q.162021R.3.2022R.4.2023R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	Q.9.	20	19
R.3.2022R.4.2023R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	Q.10.	20	20
R.4.2023R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22. 1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	Q.16	20	21
R.5.2024R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22. 1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.3.	20	22
R.9.2025R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.4.	20	23
R.11.2026R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.5.	20	24
R.14.2027R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.9.	20	25
R.15.2028R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.11.	20	26
R.18.2029R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.14.	20	27
R.20.2030R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.15.	20	28
R.21.2031R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.18.	20	29
R.22. (1)2032R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.20.	20	30
R.22. (2)2033R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)2034R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.21.	20	31
R.22.1 and R, 2 (1) 20 34 R.22.1 and R, 2 (2) 20 35 R.22.1 and R, 2 (3) 20 36	R.22. (1)	20	32
R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)2035R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)2036	R.22. (2)	20	33
R.22.1 and R, 2 (3) 20 36	R.22.1 and R, 2 (1)	20	34
	R.22.1 and R, 2 (2)	20	35
	R.22.1 and R, 2 (3)	20	36
R.22.1 and R, 2 (4) 20 37	R.22.1 and R, 2 (4)	20	37
R.22.1 and R, 2 (5) 20 38	R.22.1 and R, 2 (5)	20	38

III. RECORDS RELATING TO UNCODED PROPERTIES,BoxFolder1867-1961

1. Improvements, 1875-1913		
1891	21	1
1898	21	2
Plumbing Bills or Estimates, ca. 1900	21	3
Street Paving, 1891-1913		
Sidewalk on Morris St. 1897	21	4
Morris St. 1897-1898	21	5
Sewer Wayne Ave. to Haines St. 1898	21	6
Wissahickon Heights Ave. 1901-1902	21	7
Harvey Street paving 1900	21	8
Harvey Street paving 1900	21	9
Harvey Street paving 1900	21	10
Paving, various streets, Chestnut Hill 1911-1913	21	11
Morris St. 1897	21	12
Water Pipe Laying Bills, 1875-1901		
Chestnut Hill Ave. 1899	21	13
Bills, A.1 A.25.	21	14
Bills, A.27 A.32.	21	15
Bills, A.33 B.11.	21	16
Bills, B.11 C.20.	21	17
Bills, C.20 F.4.	21	18
Bills, 2.F.12 - M.3, B.12.	21	19
2. Title Papers, 1896-1956		

A. Properties West of Wissahickon Creek

IV. MAPS AND ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS, 1882-1967	Box	Folder
Montana	21	33
3. Title Papers, 1867-1877		
Louisiana	21	32
Louisiana	21	31
2. Real Estate List, 1898, 1905		
1. Improvements, 1902	21	30
C. Properties Outside of Philadelphia County		
3. Renter Index, 1953-1961	21	29
2. Photographs, (1940's?)	21	28
Cathedral Road 1937	21	27
Dedication of Ayrdale Road 1941	21	26
Paving 1959-1960	21	25
Streets, 1937-1960		
List of mortgages 1960	21	24
Specifications for house on Thomas Mill Road, Robert Rodes McGoodwin 1936	21	23
Houses, 1936, ca. 1955		
1. Improvements, 1936-1960		
B. Properties East of Wissahickon Creek		
Agreement of sale with Charles H. Woodward 1956	21	22
Lots on Gravers Lane, west of Cherokee St. 1934	21	21
Agreement with Walter Gordon Laboratory Company 1896	21	20

Note: See detailed inventory of contents here: https://archives.upenn.edu/digitized-resources/docs-pubs/houston-maps-inventory

Non-textual material

4:00:01	OS 3
4:00:02	OS 4
4:00:03	OS 5
4:01:04	OS 6
4:01:05	OS 7
4:01:06	OS 8
4:02:07	OS 9
4:03:08	OS 10
4:03:09	OS 11
4:03:10	OS 12
4:03:11	OS 13
4:03:12	OS 14
4:03:13	OS 15
4:03:14	OS 16
4:04:15	OS 17
4:04:16	OS 18
4:05:17	OS 19
4:05:18	OS 20
4:05:19	OS 21
4:05:20	OS 22
4:05:21	OS 23
4:05:22	OS 24
4:05:23	OS 25

4:05:24	OS 26
4:05:25	OS 27
4:05:26	OS 28
4:05:27	OS 29
4:05:28	OS 30
4:05:29	OS 31
4:06:30	OS 32
4:06:31	OS 33
4:06:32	OS 34
4:06:33	OS 35
4:06:34	OS 36
4:06:35	OS 37
4:06:36	OS 38
4:06:37	OS 39
4:07:38	OS 40
4:07:39	OS 41
4:07:40	OS 42
4:07:41	OS 43
4:07:42	OS 44
4:07:43	OS 45
4:07:44	OS 46
4:08:45	OS 47
4:08:46	OS 48
4:08:47	OS 49

4:08:48	OS 50
4:08:49	OS 51
4:08:50	OS 52
4:08:51	OS 53
4:08:52	OS 54
4:08:53	OS 55
4:08:54	OS 56
4:08:55	OS 57
4:08:56	OS 58
4:08:57	OS 59
4:08:58	OS 60
4:08:59	OS 61
4:8:60	OS 62
4:9:61	OS 63
4:11:62	OS 64
4:11:63	OS 65
4:11:64	OS 66
4:12:65	OS 67
4:12:66	OS 68
4:12:67	OS 69
4:12:68	OS 70
4:12:69	OS 71
4:12:70	OS 72
4:12:71	OS 73

4:12:72	OS 74
4:12:73	OS 75
4:12:74	OS 76
4:13:76	OS 78
4:13:77	OS 79
4:13:78	OS 80
4:13:79	OS 81
4:13:80	OS 82
4:13:81	OS 83
4:13:82	OS 84
4:13:83	OS 85
4:14:84	OS 86
4:14:85	OS 87
4:14:86	OS 88
4:15:87	OS 89
4:15:88	OS 90
4:15:89	OS 91
4:16:90	OS 92
4:16:91	OS 93
Textual material	
0:1:19a	21 34
1:6:1a	21 35
3:15:8a	21 36
4:16:4s and 4a	21 37

4:16:10a	21	38
5:24:1s	21	39
5:25:6a	21	40
5:28:1a	21	41
5:28:1b	21	42
5:28:3a	21	43
5:28:4a	21	44
5:29:1s	21	45
6:30:11a	21	46
6:34:8a	21	47
6:36:1s and 1a	21	48
6:36:2a	21	49
6:36:3a	21	50
6:36:6a	21	51
6:37:3a	21	52
7:42:4s	21	53
7:42:5a	21	54
7:43:3a	21	55
8:45:13a	21	56
8:50:8a	21	57
8:55:3a	21	58
8:55:8a	21	59
8:56:7s	21	60
8:56:12s	21	61

9:61:1s and 1a	21	62
9:61:7a	21	63
11:62:6a	21	64
12:68:9a	21	65
12:68:10a	21	66
12:69:4a	21	67
12:71:1a	21	68
12:71:1b	21	69
12:72:10a	21	70
13:82:10a	21	71
13:82:10b	21	72
14:84:9a	21	73
15:88:5a	21	74
15:89:8s	21	75
Index Book to "Old Estate Maps," ca. 1890 (does not correspond to master index map)	21	76
REAL EST. HOLDINGS OF SALLIE SHERRERD (BONNELL) OUSTON, 1902-1942	Box	Folder
Leidy	22	1
Leidy	22	2
Powers?	22	3
I. REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS OF SAMUEL FREDERIC OUSTON, 1834-1952	Box	Folder

A. Tax Receipts, 1922-1930.

1923	22	4
1924-1926	22	5
1926	22	6
1926-1927	22	7
1928-1929	22	8
1929	22	9
1929-1932	22	10
1930	22	11
B. Title Papers, 1834-1952.		
1. Properties in Philadelphia		
Carmen	22	12
Cathedral Church	22	13
Dixon (?), first property	22	14
Dixon, second property	22	15
Groskin, first property (1)	22	16
Groskin, first property (2)	22	17
Groskin, first property (3)	22	18
Groskin, first property (4)	22	19
Groskin, first property (5)	22	20
Groskin, second property (1)	22	21
Groskin, second property (2)	22	22
Hagans	22	23
Johnson	22	24
Kronmiller	22	25

Law	22	26
Milnor	22	27
Moore	22	28
Morell (?)	22	29
Nicholas	22	30
Real Estate Trust Company	22	31
Robinson	22	32
Townsend (1)	22	33
Townsend (2)	22	34
Townsend (3)	22	35
Townsend (4)	22	36
Townsend (5)	22	37
Townsend (6)	22	38
Townsend (7)	22	39
Townsend (8)	22	40
Townsend (9)	22	41
Turbett (1)	22	42
Turbett (2)	22	43
Turbett (3)	22	44
Wiswell	22	45
2. Properties Outside of Philadelphia		
Real Estate Trust Company	22	46
Dixon (1)	22	47
Dixon (2)	22	48

Dixon (3)	22	49
Groskin	22	50
Leidy, first property	23	1
Leidy, second property	23	2
Moore	23	3
Moyer	23	4
Neal	23	5
Spruance	23	6
Clapboard Island, Maine	23	7
Mellert Iron Works, Pa.	23	8

VII. REFERENCE AND RESEARCH MATERIALS	Box	Folder	
A. Biographical and Genealogical	24	1	
B. Northwest Philadelphia Real Estate Development References	24	2	
C. Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission, Inventory of Henry H. Houston Estate Papers.	24	3	
D. Allen Glicksman, Notes and Rough Inventory, H. H. Houston Estate papers, 1984			
1. Inventory	24	4	
1. Inventory	24	5	
2. Collection index	24	6	
2. Collection index	24	7	
E. John McArthur Harris, Jr., "Resume of Records," 1971-72			
1. Germantown and Chestnut Hill and east of the Wissahickon Creek			
(1)	24	8	
(2)	24	9	

(3)	24	10
(4)	24	11
2. Outside of Philadelphia		
(1)	24	12
(2)	24	13
3. Miscellaneous Properties		
(1)	24	14
(2)	24	15
4. Roxborough and west of the Wissahickon Creek		
(1)	24	16
(2)	24	17
F. Mark Frazier Lloyd Research Notes, 1978-	24	18
G. Jefferson Monroe Moak, Research Notes, 1986		
1. Chestnut Hill Almanac, Chestnut Hill Street Names.	24	19
2. Construction dates and location guide for Houston houses, Chestnut Hill.	24	20
3. "Eagle Lodge Whitemarsh Twp." 1989	24	21